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35 SHAKESPEARE GROVE
History

William Cater, draper, was the first owner in 1877 of this elegant two-
storeyed house built on land once owned by David Simpson, of Burke Road. In
1881, Samuel Haigh, importer merchant and tailor, gave the building a back-
to-front name, "Adlih", first as tenant and then as owner. Circa 1884-85,
Haigh acquired some property on the south side.?!

Description

An early two storey mansion addressing both the street and a substantial side
garden. A timber verandah encompasses the two principal elevations. Turned
posts have implied capitals from which spring brackets which join to form an
arch with an applied timber keystone. Cast iron panels fill the space between
the arch and the posts. Cast iron panels are used on the balustrade. It is
not clear whether the balustrade is original. On the garden side the verandah
has a central extension and a three bay lookout added recently.

The rendered walls incorporate fine, discrete mouldings consistent with the
1870s date. On the corners are implied pilasters and openings have slender
architraves. On the garden elevation bay windows project into the verandah
space. The roof is a simple hipped slate structure.

Assessment

This mansion is an extrapolation of the common 1870s villa type which is a
standard rectilinear plan, with bay windows extending only within the verandah
space. It is much more substantial however. Similar basic planning in single
storey form can be seen at 9 Kildare Street of contemporary date. This two
storey 1870s form is not common. The use of timber for the verandah is also
atypical. Usually this usage is associated with picturesque buildings,
particularly gothic buildings. The use of the keystone in what is clearly a
timber arch is also odd. There is not tendency to interpret the verandah as
stone which the keystone implies. Timber verandahs of later date can be found
at 41 Kinkora Road of 1890 and 144 Power Street of 1876. None have the
unusual bracket panels found here. Although no architect has been attributed
to this building, it is likely that one was involved in the design. Site
inspection is recommended to view the garden elevation and determine its
intactness.

Significance Metropolitan

1. Architecturally significant for its unusual timber verandah, uncommon
in the 1870s except for gothic buildings.

2 Architecturally significant for the typical 1870s standard form, and for
the contribution to the St. James Park estate.

21, Gwen McWilliam, "Burwood Park", 1988, p.123.
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